
  
Town of Camden 

 Select Board 
February 18, 2025 – 6:30 pm 

French Conference Room 
 

Select Board meetings are  
 web streamed at: www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine 

 
For those wishing to participate remotely, please click the link below to join the zoom meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82053577680 
 

Call to Order 
 

1. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 

2. Approval of Select Board Minutes – February 4, 2025 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
a) Renewal victualer & lodging licenses:  16 Bay View 
 

4. Dangerous Building Hearing: 39 Main Street 
 
5. Select Board Reports   
 
6. Town Manager’s Report 

 
7. Action Items: 

a) Megunticook River Citizen’s Advisory Committee Recommendation on Montgomery   
Dam   

b) Appointment of Budget Committee Members 
 

8. Adjournment 

http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82053577680


Select Board Minutes 1 
Minutes of Meeting 2 
February 4, 2025 3 

 4 
PRESENT: Chair Susan Dorr, Vice Chair Christopher Nolan, Tom Hedstrom, Alison McKellar, Ken Gross and 5 
Town Manager Audra Caler 6 
 7 
 8 
Please go to  http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine to view the entire meeting.  Please 9 
note MRS Title 1, §403 Record of meetings  only requires recording of attendance of members and 10 
actions of the Board.  The statute also states that video and audio recordings of public meetings 11 
satisfies the requirement, should any conflict arise between these minutes and the video record, 12 
the video record is considered the official public record.  13 
 14 
Chair Dorr called the meeting to order 15 
 16 

1. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items (Video Recording minute mark 3:02) 17 
Marc Ratner – Resident and Knox County Commissioner - discussed efforts to resolve the long-18 
standing issues with the Knox call center. He highlighted that new leadership is in place, and 19 
proactive steps are being taken to fix the problem quickly. He has been in regular contact with local 20 
fire and police chiefs, as well as state officials. Ratner emphasized the commissioner's commitment 21 
to making lasting changes rather than temporary fixes.  22 
 23 

2. Approval of Select Board Minutes – February 4, 2025 (Video Recording minute mark 7:07) 24 
 25 
Gross mentioned line 43 should indicate what digital report such as digital copy of the Curtis Island 26 
Preservation report. 27 
 28 
McKellar moved; Nolan seconded to approve the minutes with the edit suggested above.  The 29 
motion passed on a 4-0-0 vote. 30 
 31 

3. Update of Wabanaki Signage Project from Colton Butler & Mateo Jacques. (Video Recording 32 
minute mark 7:57) 33 
A presentation by students from Camden Rockport Middle School. The students shared their 34 
research and plans for the project, which includes signage at various locations around Camden to 35 
recognize Wabanaki people and acknowledge the original names of places. The board expressed 36 
their support for the project and discussed potential funding sources. 37 
 38 

4. Consent Agenda: (Video Recording minute mark 19:42) 39 
 a) Renewal Victualer & Loding Licenses: 16 Bay View Inn 40 
 41 

Nolan was concerned about the lack of documentation for the consent agenda item.  Fire Chief Farley 42 
commented that the annual life safety inspections had been completed, and they found no issues.  It 43 
was the consensus of the Board to move this to an action item for further consideration. 44 
 45 

5. Public Hearings for Town Meeting Warrant Articles: (Video Recording minute mark 24:12) 46 
 47 
a) Chapter 290 §8.5 Coastal Residential District (CR) B. (5) (C.) 48 
 49 
Jeremy Martin, Planning & Development Director explained this agenda item consists of a public 50 
hearing for a zoning amendment proposed by FHRE, LLC (Borden Cottage). The proposed 51 

http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=179
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=179
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=430
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=468
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=468
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=1184
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=1184
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=1451


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 2 
February 4, 2025 
 

amendment has gone through the required planning board public hearing process and was 52 
unanimously supported by the planning board with a recommendation that the Select Board hold a 53 
hearing and send to voters in June.  54 
 55 
FHRE, LLC’s proposed zoning amendment would simply allow Borden Cottage, LLC to have a maximum 56 
of 18 beds rather than the 12 currently allowed, and to allow them to be in either single or double 57 
occupancy bedrooms, as opposed to the current requirement of only allowing them in single-58 
occupancy bedrooms. There are no other changes requested, and the proposal would not alter or 59 
change the site in any other way. 60 
 61 
There was no public comment received. 62 
 63 
McKellar moved; Nolan seconded to move the proposed amendment to Chapter 290 §8.5 64 
Coastal Residential District (CR) B. (5) (C.) to allow a state licensed facility to have 18 beds in the 65 
CR District to the Annual Town Meeting Warrant.  The motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 66 
 67 
b) Chapter 290 Zoning Ordinance, Article III Terminology, §290—3.2 Definitions – adding a minimum 68 

size requirement of 190 square for accessory apartments (Video Recording minute mark 69 
29:51) 70 

  Jeremy Martin, Development Director, explained this agenda item consists of a public hearing 71 
for a zoning amendment drafted by the Town of Camden to ensure the Town follows the state-72 
mandated LD2003 housing rules. The State Department of Economic and Community 73 
Development (DECD) reviewed the recent amendments that were approved by voters to 74 
implement the requirements of LD2003 and responded with a strongly worded 75 
recommendation that our code needed to include the minimum allowable square footage for 76 
accessory apartments, not just the maximum square footage.   77 
 78 
The proposed amendment has gone through the required planning board public hearing process 79 
and was unanimously supported by the planning board with a recommendation that the Select 80 
Board hold a hearing and send to voters in June. 81 
 82 
There was no public comment received. 83 

 84 
Gross moved, McKellar moved, the proposed amendment to Chapter 290 Zoning Ordinance, 85 
Article III Terminology, §290—3.2 Definitions – adding a minimum size requirement of 190 86 
square for accessory apartments to the town meeting warrant in June.  The motion passed 87 
on a 5-0-0 vote. 88 

 89 
6. Select Board Reports (Video Recording minute mark 34:17) 90 
 Gross: Enjoyed the Toboggan Festival and thanked the organizers. The Cemetery Committee met 91 

and discussed a new GIS interface for cemetery records, which isn’t live yet. They are working on 92 
finalizing their budget, which will be discussed next week. 93 
McKellar: Midcoast Solid Waste approved their annual budget with no increase for taxpayers, 94 
continuing a 5-year trend. They have a waste reduction reserve fund and are planning a waste audit 95 
to identify more recyclable materials. 96 
Hedstrom: No report. 97 

https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=1801
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=1801
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=2058


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 3 
February 4, 2025 
 

Nolan: The Megunticook River Citizens Advisory Group is working on their second draft proposal. 98 
Also appreciated a walk-through of the Snow Bowl, discussing its needs with Jeff Nathan and the 99 
business out there Side Country Sports. 100 
Dorr: Praised the community spirit at Snow Bowl and mentioned impressive drone photography 101 
by Alison. Also, expressed gratitude for the professionalism of local first responders, particularly 102 
during a recent neighborhood incident. 103 

 104 
7. Town Manager’s Report Summary (Video Recording minute mark 40:26) 105 

Rawson Avenue Bridge: Bids were received for the actual bridge portion of the project (not the 106 
removal). The low bid was under budget, which is good news. The bridge removal is scheduled to 107 
start in mid-February, with prep work already underway. The new bridge is expected to be in place 108 
by June. 109 
Brown Tail Moth: The Department of Agriculture Conservation and Forestry has reported high to 110 
moderate brown tail moth populations based on aerial surveys. There's an opportunity for citizen 111 
science participation, where people can report sightings of the moth. The best time for this is from 112 
mid-December to March. 113 
Harbor Resiliency Project: The wrap-up meeting for this project will be tomorrow night at the 114 
Camden Public Library from 4:30 to 6:00 PM. There is an option for remote participation, and the 115 
link for this will be available on the library's website as well as the town's website. 116 

 117 
8. Action Items: 118 

a) Award of Snow Bowl Master Plan to SE Group (Video Recording minute mark 42:20) 119 
Jeff Nathan, Snow Bowl Manager stated that the Town of Camden issued a Request for Proposal 120 
(RFP) for the development of a comprehensive Master Plan w h i c h  focused on the 121 
development of four-season healthy outdoor activities at the Camden Snow Bowl and he is 122 
recommending the contract be awarded to SE Group. 123 

 124 
He further mentioned the Town of Camden received a $160,000 grant from the Community Outdoor 125 
Recreation Assistance (CORA) Program through the Economic Development Administration. Most 126 
of the award ($106,000) will pay for the development of the Master Plan.  The plan includes 127 
community engagement and aims to be completed by June 30th.  128 
 129 
Nolan raised concerns about the timeline and the lack of community input before the vision 130 
was created.   131 
 132 
Nathan clarified that the plan is to have a visual representation of the plan before engaging 133 
with the public.   The Board asked Nathan to put together a summary of past planning efforts 134 
done for the Snow Bowl. 135 

 136 
McKellar moved, Hedstrom seconded to award the bid to SE Group for the Snow Bowl 137 
Master Plan. The motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 138 

 139 
b) Pleasant Ridge Subdivision: Acquisition of Stormwater Retention Pond (Video Recording 140 

minute mark 1:11:54) 141 
Jeremy Martin led a discussion about the acquisition of a stormwater retention pond in the 142 
Pleasant Ridge subdivision.  Michael Koryta and Darby Urey, representatives of the 12-lot 143 
homeowners association, explained the history of the pond and the challenges they faced in 144 

https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=2423
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=2663
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=4315
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=4315


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 4 
February 4, 2025 
 

maintaining it. They highlighted the unique situation where the town controls the water 145 
upstream and downstream, but the homeowner’s association is responsible for the 146 
maintenance of the pond.  Martin agreed that the town should take ownership of the pond to 147 
ensure proper maintenance and protect the river and town's interests.  148 
 149 
Hedstrom moved, McKellar moved that the town manager direct the town staff to work 150 
with the homeowner’s association to prepare a proposal for the town to acquire the 151 
pond and move to the June Town Meeting Warrant.  The motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 152 
 153 

c) Fee Amendment: Camden Resident Discount for Snow Bowl Day Passes 154 
Nathan proposed a discount schedule for day passes at the Snow Bowl, he did not put that in 155 
the packet, but he will put something together and forward to the Board on the updated Snow 156 
Bowl day pass discount schedule for Camden residents 157 
 158 
Nolan moved; McKellar seconded to approve the amendment fee for the Camden 159 
Resident Discount for Snow Bowl Day Passes.  The motion passed the 5-0-0 vote. 160 
 161 

d) Approval of renewal victualer & lodging licenses for 16 Bay View (Video Recording minute 162 
mark 1:51:59) 163 

 164 
 After a brief discussion it was the consensus of the Board to table this item direct Town staff 165 

to include the 16 Bayview license documentation in the next meeting packet for review 166 
and approval. 167 

 168 
9. Discussion Items: (Video Recording Minute Mark 1:56:29) 169 

a) Regional Communications/Dispatch: Options for FY 2026 170 
 The Board, Town Manager, and Police and Fire Chief’s discussed Knox County’s 911 dispatch service 171 

in regard to Knox County experiencing critical staffing shortages, causing temporary call transfers 172 
to Waldo County. Despite efforts to stabilize, the issue persists. Rockland is considering creating its 173 
own dispatch center, potentially involving Camden and Rockport, but concerns about cost and 174 
feasibility remain. A new director has been hired at Knox Regional Communications Center, and 175 
officials are awaiting updates while preparing contingency plans. There's uncertainty about the 176 
long-term viability of Knox County's dispatch, and alternative options like Waldo County or regional 177 
consolidation are being explored. Immediate solutions are needed ahead of the July deadline, with 178 
a focus on clear performance goals and better community feedback to ensure reliable service. 179 

  180 
 Next steps will be that Town Manager and town staff will investigate best dispatch service options 181 

and keep the Select Board apprised of developments.  They will also come up with objectives for dispatch 182 
services and the Select Board will  consider setting aside additional funds in the upcoming budget in 183 
case of higher dispatch costs 184 

 185 
10. Adjournment (Video Recording Minute Mark 2:31:35) 186 
 187 

McKellar moved; Nolan seconded to adjourn at 8:35 pm.  The motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 188 
 189 

https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=6710
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=6710
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=6985
https://youtu.be/NA3tlk8qxiY?t=9301


 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Select Board  

From: Town Manager 

Date: February 11, 2025 

Re: Consent Agenda 
  
 
PURPOSE 
Overview of the Consent Agenda. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Requesting Select Board Approval of renewal of victualer & lodging licenses for: 16 Bay View. 
 
This businesses has submitted complete applications and the appropriate application reviews 
have been made by the code enforcement officer and the fire department has completed their 
annual life safety inspection. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt the Consent Agenda. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
         January 31, 2025 
 

The following establishment has submitted applications for approval of their VICTUALER LICENSE & 
LODGING LICENSE.  The appropriate application reviews have been made by the code enforcement officer 
and fire chief.   

 
 
Business Name Location Lodging 

Exp. 
Victualer Exp. 

Bay View Inn 16 Bay View Street 02/28/2025 02/28/2025 
    
    
    
    

 
    
    

 
 
   
       

CAMDEN SELECT BOARD 
 
             
Susan Dorr, Chair     Christopher Nolan, Vice Chair 
 
             
Alison McKellar     Kenneth Gross 
 

       
                       Thomas Hedstrom 

 
 
 

       
Date of Approval 







































 

 

 

  

  

MONTGOMERY DAM 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
Prepared for: 

Town of Camden Select Board 

 

Prepared by: 

Town of Camden  

Megunticook River Citizens Advisory Committee 

 
February 15, 2025 

 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY ……………………………………………………………………………………….……..3 

MRCAC ROLE AND PROCESS ……………………………………………………………………………………………….…….5 

PROJECT BACKGROUND ……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………..6 

INFORMATION GATHERING ……………………………………………………………………………………….……………..8 

TECHNICAL REPORTS ……………………………………………………………………………………………….……………8 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT……………………………………………………….………………8 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION …………………………………………………………………….…….…………10 

SCENARIOS CONSIDERED ………………………………………………………………………………………..…………..10 

ECOLOGICAL HEALTH …………………………………………………………………………………………………………..10 

FLOOD RISK AND CLIMATE CHANGE …………………………………………………………………………………….12 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS ………………………………………………………………………………………………14 

LANDSCAPE AESTHETICS …………………………………………………………………………………………………..…17 

HISTORY AND CULTURE ……………………………………………………………………………………………………….19 

HARBOR PARK ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..19 

COMMUNITY INPUT……………………………………………………………………………………………..………………20 

KEY FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION  …………………………………………………………………………………21 

APPENDIX: RESOURCES AND REFERENCES ………………………………………………………………..…………….24 

DAM COMPONENTS AND EXISTING CONDITIONS…………………………………………………..…………….24 

SCENARIO RENDITIONS …………………………………………………………………………………………..…………..25 

FLOOD MAP …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…...28 

KEY DOCUMENTS ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…29 

MRCAC MEETINGS ………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…….30 

MRCAC PRESENTATIONS AND EVENTS …………………………………………………………………………..…...31 

POTENTIAL GRANT OPPORTUNITIES FOR FISH PASSAGE INSTALLATION  

OR DAM REMOVAL………………………………………………..……………………………………………….…...32 

POTENTIAL GRANT OPPORTUNITIES FOR DAM REPAIR …………………………………………….………...35 

 

  



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   3 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY 

The Megunticook River Citizens Advisory Committee (MRCAC) was formed by the Town of Camden in 

September of 2022 to provide recommendations to the Select Board for preserving and improving 

sustainability and resiliency of the Megunticook River and its watershed.1  

We reviewed feasibility studies, conducted extensive research, consulted experts and undertook numerous 

methods of community outreach. It is from this gathered input that we put forth the following 

recommendation to the Town of Camden Select Board. We are presenting our recommendation for the 

Montgomery Dam first because the town vote in June regarding Montgomery Dam options will impact the 

recommendations for the upstream dams.  

We, the Megunticook River Citizens Advisory Committee, in an 8-1 decision, are recommending full removal 

of the Montgomery Dam, creating a free-flowing river that reduces damage to the shoreline and complies 

with Camden Public Library’s Statement on Harbor Park from April of 2024. This recommendation aligns with 

our mission of preserving and improving the sustainability and resiliency of the Megunticook River and its 

watershed and is based on close examination of environmental, ecological, financial, aesthetic, historical, 

cultural, and community input considerations.  

The following factors contributed to MRCAC’s decision:  

Ecological Health: The Montgomery Dam poses severe ecological challenges by blocking sea-run fish, 

trapping sediment, degrading water quality, and disrupting watershed continuity. A river impounded 

by the dam lacks aquatic habitat quality and diversity. Its removal would restore sea-run fish habitat 

for alewives, Atlantic salmon, and brook trout, and provide the greatest potential for recovery of 

ecological health in the Megunticook Watershed. Removal also aligns with Maine's current broader 

commitment to ecosystem recovery and supports the cultural and economic significance of 

sustainable fisheries in the Gulf of Maine.  

Flood Risk and Climate Change: The Montgomery Dam exacerbates flood risks in downtown Camden 

by impeding natural water flow, particularly as climate change increases storm intensity. The dam 

currently influences flood levels between the dam and just below the Brewster Building, affecting 15 

private and two public properties within the regulatory floodplain. Since undammed river systems 

better manage heavy rainfall, removal reduces risks to nearby buildings and infrastructure and 

promotes long-term resiliency for Camden’s downtown area.  

Financial Considerations: Removing the Montgomery Dam is the fiscally responsible choice 

demonstrated by the following considerations:  

1. Maintaining and repairing the aging dam requires significant financial investment, with daily 

inspections, frequent gate opening and closing, and costly repairs.  

2. Removal of the dam has lower capitol and lifespan costs compared to restoration.  

3. External funding sources, such as ecological recovery grants, are currently available to 

support removal. Those funding sources will not support maintaining the dam.  

 
1 MRCAC defines resiliency as the community’s ability to withstand or quickly rebound from changes as it responds to a 

variety of pressures, (e.g. economic, environmental, social, and aesthetic). 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   4 

4. Funding opportunities for removing the three private dams (Knox Mill Dam, Knowlton Street 

Dam, and the Powder Mill ruins) and necessary upgrades to the three upstream high hazard 

dams (Seabright Dam, East, and West Dams) are only available if fish passage is enabled. 

Therefore, choosing to fully restore the Montgomery Dam equates to costly management 

not only for the Montgomery Dam, but also for the upstream dams. 

History and Culture: Built in 1771 by William Minot as a grist mill, the dam in the current location of 

the Montgomery Dam was one of eleven dams built on the Megunticook River that played a crucial 

role in Camden’s early industrial development. Today there are seven dams on the Megunticook River. 

The four lower dams (Montgomery Dam, Knox Mill Dam, Knowlton Street Dam, and the Powder Mill 

ruins) no longer serve their original purposes nor do they serve the functions of flood control, water 

supply, or power generation.2 While the Montgomery Dam and other upstream dams were integral in 

fostering local industry and Camden’s development, it is equally important to celebrate the pre-

industrial, indigenous, and natural history of the region and acknowledge the landscape and 

ecosystems that existed prior to their construction.  

Harbor Park: While the land parcel containing the Montgomery Dam is not part of Harbor Park, any 

modifications to the dam will impact Harbor Park and the Olmsted legacy. In 1928, the Olmsted 

brothers were hired by Camden resident Mary Louise Curtis Bok to create a plan for Harbor Park. 

While the Montgomery Dam may be seen on some Olmsted renderings of Harbor Park, their primary 

concern with the dam was the reinforcement and strengthening necessary for the creation of Harbor 

Park. Their design intentionally obscured the dam from view. The Olmsteds were pioneers in 

sustainable design and conservation who championed human connection to nature. As such, removal 

of the Montgomery Dam, restoring a naturalized river system, and implementing a more adaptive and 

resilient shoreline aligns with the Olmsteds’ legacy and principles. Since Harbor Park is included in the 

High Street Historic District on the National Register of Historical Places and is under the management 

of the Camden Public Library Board of Trustees, any modifications to Harbor Park must align with 

guidelines and be approved by the Trustees.  

Landscape Aesthetics: The beauty of Camden Harbor and the natural environment at the mouth of the 

Megunticook River are integral to the town’s appeal and economic well-being. Aesthetics are 

unquestionably subjective and difficult to quantify, but are nevertheless paramount in this decision. 

Removal of the Montgomery Dam allows for intentional and thoughtful landscape improvements to 

the harbor, river entry into the harbor, the adjacent park space and upstream impoundment areas. 

Seamless integration of the river into the surrounding landscape can enhance the aesthetic appeal to 

locals, property owners, and tourists alike, and play an integral role in maintaining the picturesque 

beauty for which Camden is known. If Camden residents vote to remove the Montgomery Dam, any 

aesthetic changes will require approval by town leadership and the Camden Public Library Board of 

Trustees. Design decisions may also necessitate approval from the Maine Historic Preservation 

Commission, the National Park Service, and the Town of Camden Historic Resources Committee.  

Community Input: MRCAC gathered extensive community input through public meetings, meetings 

with stakeholders and advocacy groups, events, emails, and a public survey. Community concerns 

 
2 Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky. Feasibility/Alternatives Analysis Report: Montgomery Dam, Megunticook River. 2019. 

Page 2. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   5 

ranged from historical preservation and aesthetics to ecological health, fish passage, flood resilience, 

and taxpayer impact. Perspectives on the Montgomery Dam varied—some residents and business 

owners feared that removing the dam could negatively affect aesthetics and the downtown economy, 

while others believed enabling fish migration and revitalizing the river would attract tourism and 

strengthen local businesses. Community feedback opposing the compromise option of partial dam 

removal with fish passage, reinforced our view that it was not a viable solution. While we carefully 

considered community input, the community’s contrasting views required us to rely heavily on our 

research and expert guidance to determine the best option for the long-term wellbeing and resilience 

of the Megunticook River and the community. 

 

MRCAC ROLE AND PROCESS 

The Megunticook River Citizens Advisory Committee (MRCAC) was formed by the Town of Camden in 

September of 2022 with nine members appointed by the Camden Select Board. Members were selected from 

a group of applicants based on the following criteria:  

• Broad-based backgrounds with diverse perspectives 

• Some experience or close connection with the Megunticook River  

• Experience working thoughtfully and effectively in small groups 

• Ability to attend all committee meetings 

MRCAC was tasked with studying the facts, listening to the community, and providing recommendations to the 

Select Board on how to preserve and improve the sustainability and resiliency of the Megunticook River and its 

watershed while also considering the interests and needs of the community. These recommendations were 

developed through engagement with the community, stakeholders, grant-funding agencies, and technical 

experts and by conducting a due diligence process to advance viable options.  

Our work was supported by non-voting Select Board liaisons and FB Environmental, a consulting firm 

specializing in environmental planning and restoration. Experts from Inter-Fluve (a company that specializes in 

river restoration) and Viewshed (a landscape architecture and planning firm) also supported our work with 

technical expertise.  

As of mid-February 2025, MRCAC has held 34 meetings. In these meetings we discussed topics related to the 

Megunticook River and its watershed, shared data and information, and planned community outreach and 

engagement. All meetings were open to the public, recorded, and published online.  

For more information on committee members or our by-laws, please visit our website at 

https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/pages/committee-materials. 

 

  

https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/pages/committee-materials


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   6 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 

The Megunticook Watershed encompasses 32 square miles in the towns of Camden, Lincolnville, and Hope. 

Flowing 3.5 miles from Megunticook Lake to Camden Harbor, the Megunticook River is an important cultural 

and ecological resource for the Town of Camden.  

  

Figure 1. Current dams stationed along the Megunticook River 

 

Seven dams currently span the river, largely built in the 19th century to power local industries. The upper 

three dams owned by the Town of Camden (Seabright, East and West) function to maintain water levels in 

Megunticook Lake and Seabright impoundment and will not be removed. Their classification as high-hazard 

dams indicates that any failure or mis-operation could cause serious harm or loss of human life or significant 

economic, environmental, or infrastructure damage.  

The four lower dams include the town-owned Montgomery Dam and privately-owned Knox Mill Dam, 

Knowlton Street Dam, and Powder Mill ruins. These dams no longer serve their original purpose. They raise 

flood risk, prevent sea-run fish migration, and impair the health of the watershed. The Montgomery Dam also 

requires complex and costly maintenance and repairs. With increasing and intensifying precipitation as well as 

aging dam structures that were not built for increasing precipitation or flood resilience, it is clear the town 

needs to address the rising flood risk as well as the ongoing financial burden.  

The Town of Camden contracted with Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky to conduct two feasibility studies to 

evaluate current conditions at the Montgomery Dam and model conditions for dam restoration, partial 

removal, and full removal options. Their 2021 Megunticook River Feasibility Report concluded that dam 

removal would lower water levels in the river, creating a more resilient buffer to increasing and unpredictable 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   7 

flow conditions. As such, they recommended removing the four lower dams (Montgomery Dam, Knox Mill 

Dam, Knowlton Street Dam, and Powder Mill ruins).  

While some community members supported these recommendations, other community members expressed 

interest in preserving the Montgomery Dam, citing its historical significance and contribution to the aesthetics 

of downtown Camden.  

In August 2022, the Town of Camden was awarded a $1.6 million grant by the National Fish and Wildlife 

Foundation (NFWF) and National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) through the National 

Coastal Resiliency Fund. The grant funded the creation and work of MRCAC, community outreach and 

engagement, and coordination with public and private property owners.  

In June 2025, the Town of Camden will vote on the options for the Montgomery Dam.  

 

 

Figure 2. Montgomery Dam and Harbor Park at low tide. 

  



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   8 

INFORMATION GATHERING 

TECHNICAL REPORTS  

MRCAC began the data-gathering process by closely reviewing the information available in feasibility 

assessments conducted by Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky, as well as other technical reporting. We then 

participated in developing a gap analysis to determine the information available versus the information 

needed to make a well-informed recommendation. Our gap analysis as well as a full list of the supporting 

reports are provided in the Appendix. The primary reports utilized in decision-making include: 

• Feasibility/Alternatives Analysis Report: Montgomery Dam, Megunticook River by Inter-Fluve and 

Gartley & Dorsky (2019) 

• Megunticook River Feasibility Report by Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky (2021) 

• Montgomery Dam Analysis Report and Cost Memorandum by Inter-Fluve (2024) 

 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT 

MRCAC undertook numerous methods of community outreach and engagement, both to share information 

with the community and to solicit feedback and questions. We prioritized extensive community outreach and 

engagement, recognizing that an inclusive and transparent process was essential to making well-informed 

decisions and developing a recommendation that reflects the community’s values and priorities. Our efforts 

were designed not only to share critical information about the project but also to actively listen, learn, and 

incorporate public input at every stage. 

To achieve this, we implemented multiple outreach techniques and engaged with a broad range of Camden 

residents and perspectives. By doing so, we gained valuable insights into residents' concerns, knowledge gaps, 

and hopes for the future of the Megunticook River watershed. Feedback from the community directly shaped 

our understanding of key issues, highlighted areas where additional clarification was needed, and ultimately 

informed our recommendation. 

Our community outreach and engagement efforts have included:  

● Public MRCAC Meetings: Our meetings were public, broadcast live on Zoom, and published on 

YouTube. Beginning in August 2023, the last 15 minutes of MRCAC meetings were reserved for public 

questions and comments.  

● Website: We built an extensive and interactive website (www.megunticookrivercac.com) to share 

information about MRCAC’s process and findings, including an evolving FAQ section based on 

questions posed by the public.  

● Newsletters: We sent 14 informative newsletters and other announcements to a 200 + person listserv 

and left printed copies at the Town Office and Camden Public Library. 

● News Media: We submitted announcements and press releases to local papers. 

● Facebook: We created a Facebook Page (www.facebook.com/CamdenMRCAC), posted our individual 

recommendations to the Town of Camden page, and answered questions from community members.  

http://www.megunticookrivercac.com/
http://www.facebook.com/CamdenMRCAC/


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   9 

● Mailing to Residents: In August 2023, we mailed informational postcards to more than 3,000 Camden 

residences to inform community members about our work and invite them to take an online survey. 

● Community Surveys: We created an online survey with the help of the University of New Hampshire, 

that received over 250 responses while a separate survey of local middle and high school students 

received 50 responses. These surveys did not seek opinions on the future of the Montgomery Dam, 

but instead aimed to assess community interests, knowledge gaps, and preferred methods of 

engagement. The Survey also invited respondents to share general concerns and ask questions. 

● Interviews: We conducted more than 60 one-on-one interviews with community members 

representing a range of perspectives about the project (see the Appendix for a summary).  

● Expert-led Presentations: We hosted 10 public, online, and in-person presentations by local and 

regional experts on a variety of pertinent topics, including sea-run fish, flood risks, historic and 

cultural considerations, ecosystem dynamics, and similar river restoration projects in other towns. 

There was also a guided tour of the dams with Camden’s Dam Control Agent. These topics were 

chosen to address some of the knowledge gaps identified in the Gap Analysis and the online survey.  

● Tabling: We tabled at events such as the Camden Farmers’ Market, the Stewardship Education 

Alliance Fair, and election voting at the Camden Fire Station. We showcased fact sheets, brochures, 

Q&A documents, and large maps of the watershed. 

● Community Meetings: We organized two community meetings in October 2024 to present our 

research and findings, share potential design options for the Montgomery Dam, and gather feedback 

during a Q&A session and via a questionnaire. After the presentations, the public was invited to 

explore maps of the watershed and design options and engage in one-on-one conversations with 

MRCAC committee members. 

● Conversations with Camden Public Library Board of Trustees: We engaged with the Camden Public 

Library (CPL) Board of Trustees to ensure that CPL interests and the potential impacts on Harbor Park 

were considered. One of our committee members was also on the Board of Trustees. 

● Conversations with Advocacy Groups: We invited advocacy groups, Save the Dam Falls and Restore 

Megunticook, to present their perspectives to the committee and engage in discussion to provide a 

balanced understanding of the issues on each side. We also met with the Watershed School, the 

Historic Resources Committee, the Pathways Committee, and the Conservation Commission to discuss 

the project and answer questions. 

● Conversations with Dam Owners: We met the owners of the Powder Mill, Knox Mill, and Knowlton 

Street dams to discuss the project and answer questions. 

● Conversations with Business Owners: Meetings and outreach efforts were conducted with 

downtown businesses to understand their perspectives on how dam removal might affect tourism, 

operations, and overall economic vitality.  

● Informational Displays: Large visuals of the Montgomery Dam renditions and written materials were 

displayed at the Camden Public Library and other locations in Town. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   10 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

SCENARIOS CONSIDERED 

In Summer 2024, MRCAC, assisted by Inter-Fluve and Viewshed consultants, chose three options to consider 

for the Montgomery Dam. Our objectives in selecting the options focused on reducing operational and 

maintenance costs, mitigating upstream flooding risks, restoring fish passage, improving the ecological health 

of the Megunticook River watershed, and increasing the public value of the river and the dam site. The options 

we chose are as follows:  

Scenario A: Dam Restoration: Status quo plus necessary repairs to the dam, including full spillway 

restoration, maintaining all current dimensions. 

Scenario B: Partial Dam Removal with Fish Passage. Lowering the dam by 4.5 feet, eliminating the 

south spillway wall, shortening the east spillway by 50%, reducing the impoundment size by 

approximately 2/3 under typical conditions, and adding a weir and pool fishway.  

Scenario C: Full Dam Removal: Removing all masonry associated with the dam and aligning the 

cascade to its original path.  

Renditions of these scenarios are located in the Appendix.  

ECOLOGICAL HEALTH  

The dams on the Megunticook River create barriers that disrupt the river’s natural flow, habitat connectivity, 

and sea-run fish migration, negatively impacting the river and watershed’s health, biodiversity, and ecological 

resilience. The slow-flowing water found in dam impoundments is generally warmer and less oxygenated than 

free-flowing cold water, reducing habitat suitability for cold-water fish species and macroinvertebrates and 

endangering juvenile fish and eggs.  

Full dam removal offers the greatest environmental benefits by restoring a healthy, free-flowing river, 

enhancing ecological connectivity, and improving biodiversity and water quality. Dam removal improves water 

quality by restoring natural flow, flushing out stagnant water, reducing sediment buildup and accumulation of 

pollutants, and increasing oxygen levels essential for aquatic life. Reconnecting habitats and improving 

conditions for plant and animal species increases biodiversity in both freshwater and marine environments. A 

healthier river can also improve ecosystem resilience, increasing its ability to respond and adapt to the impacts 

of a changing climate such as increased flooding, prolonged droughts, rising water temperatures, and shifting 

species distributions. 

Sea-Run Fish Migration  

As a keystone species, sea-run fish play a crucial role in river habitats by supporting nutrient cycling, providing 

a vital food source for wildlife, and maintaining the overall health and balance of aquatic ecosystems. The 

Montgomery Dam presents a barrier to sea-run fish attempting to access the river from Camden Harbor. 

Young American eels, known as elvers, are the exception, and have been observed throughout the length of 

the Megunticook River up to Megunticook Lake. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   11 

The Maine Department of Marine Resources (MDMR) and the Maine Department of Environmental Protection 

(MDEP) have identified the Megunticook River, Megunticook Lake, and Norton Pond as previously supporting 

indigenous and sea-run fish populations that no longer have access to the river due to man-made barriers. 

Additionally,  the Maine Stream Connectivity Work Group, a partnership of state, federal, industry and non-

government organizations working to improve Maine’s stream restoration efforts, identifies Megunticook Lake 

and Norton Pond as documented historical alewife habitat.3  

According to MDMR, migratory fish species were historically present in all Maine watersheds unless significant 

natural or man-made barriers were present.4 While portions of the Megunticook River contain natural falls, 

they are not expected to have historically precluded fish passage for most species under most conditions. 

Additionally, the original river path was filled, intentionally pushing the mouth of the river over higher 

elevation bedrock than the historical channel had once been.  

The Megunticook River and Lake currently provide viable habitat for species such as alewives (also known as 

river herring), blueback herring, and sea-run brook trout. Alewives have been observed at the end of the 

Montgomery Dam spillway in Camden Harbor in recent years, suggesting they would access the river with 

suitable passage provided. Atlantic salmon and rainbow smelt could also potentially occupy the Megunticook 

River with suitable fish passage, in coordination with other regional efforts to recover their populations. The 

Megunticook River watershed falls within the Penobscot salmon habitat recovery unit for Atlantic salmon, and 

it contains modeled potential salmon rearing habitat. Importantly, MDMR attests that the introduction of sea-

run fish, such as alewives, would not lead to negative environmental outcomes throughout the watershed. 

The 2019 Feasibility Study reports that native sea-run fish typically require stream gradients of 3-5%, though 

it’s not uncommon for fish to access steeper gradients for short distances. The current conditions at the 

Montgomery Dam result in an approximately 16% gradient. The report indicates that partial dam removal 

would result in a 13% gradient, full dam removal with the channel in the existing ledge outcrop would result in 

a 10% gradient. These options would maintain the barrier to migratory fish. Full dam removal with the channel 

restored to its original path could result in a 4-6% gradient, which is suitable for sea-run fish migration.  

Dam restoration would maintain the barrier to migratory fish as well as its vulnerability to failure during 

extreme flooding events, posing a potential hazard to riverine ecosystems in addition to nearby properties. 

While partial dam removal would allow some flow improvement, it will not fully eliminate stagnation and 

stratification issues. Partial dam removal may improve fish passage to some degree; however, it would not 

fully reconnect upstream and downstream habitats. Many migratory species require complete access to thrive. 

Fish passage structures do not fully replicate the ecological benefits of a free-flowing river and typically allow 

fewer fish to ascend compared to a naturalized river.  

Sea-run fish further enhance water quality by transporting marine-derived nutrients upstream and regulating 

insect and algae populations, promoting a balanced ecosystem. Enabling sea-run fish to access critical 

spawning and rearing habitats, would increase fish populations and, in turn, attract predator species such as 

otters, eagles, osprey, seals, and larger fish to the area, and could enhance local lobster fisheries that utilize 

alewives for bait. Strengthening food webs across the river, watershed, and ocean ecosystems. 

 
3 Maine Stream Connectivity Work Group. Maine Stream Habitat Viewer. https://webapps2.cgis-
solutions.com/MaineStreamViewer/ 
4 Maine Department of Marine Resources. Maine River Herring Fact Sheet. https://www.maine.gov/dmr/fisheries/sea-
run-fisheries/programs-and-projects/river-herring-alewife-fact-sheet. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   12 

Sediment 

At the time of the 2019 Feasibility Study, an estimated 250-300 cubic yards of fine sediment was trapped 

behind the Montgomery Dam. Sediment testing during the study revealed levels of metals and semi-volatile 

organic compounds above recommended levels. These results were similar to a sample taken from Camden 

Harbor, indicating that release of the sediments from full or partial dam removal would not increase the 

concentration of these pollutants in the harbor. The accumulation of sediment upstream of a dam shallows the 

river and further contributes to warmer water temperatures. Sediment trapping further alters the sediment 

composition of a riverbed, changing the natural ratio between fine and coarse sediments which can limit 

biodiversity. 

Short-term Impacts 

In the short-term, dam removal can disrupt the ecosystem by temporarily increasing sediment loads, which 

may degrade water quality and impact aquatic habitats. Wildlife that has adapted to the artificial reservoir, 

such as certain fish and bird species, may experience some habitat loss and displacement. However, these 

effects are temporary and outweighed by the long-term ecological and flood resilience benefits.  

In summary, full dam removal offers the greatest environmental benefits by restoring a free-flowing river, re-

connecting habitats, enhancing ecological health, enabling sea-run fish migration, and improving resilience, 

water quality, and biodiversity. These benefits align with the community’s goals for improved resilience and 

sustainability and reflect a commitment to the long-term ecological health of the Megunticook River and 

watershed. 

FLOOD RISK AND CLIMATE CHANGE  

Increased Precipitation 

In weighing the proposed options for the Montgomery Dam, we considered their effects on water flow and 

flood levels, factoring in anticipated climate change impacts. Rising temperatures have led to increased 

precipitation in Maine, with Camden receiving an additional 16 inches of annual rainfall over the past 

century—equating to 9 billion more gallons annually in the Megunticook watershed. By mid-century, annual 

rainfall is expected to rise by 9 additional inches,5 adding 5 billion more gallons annually to the watershed.6 

This increased volume must flow through Camden's aging dams and narrow downtown drainage systems, 

which were not designed to handle such conditions.  

In 1922, six to eight inches of rain falling in a single day after several days of rain overwhelmed the dams along 

the Megunticook River, flooding downtown and causing over $2 million in damages (when adjusted for 2024 

dollars).7  As rainstorms in the region intensify in volume and frequency due to rising temperatures and 100-

year flooding is becoming more common, the risk of flooding along the Megunticook River is growing. This 

underscores the need for implementing resiliency measures that help protect vital community assets.  

The Montgomery Dam currently influences flood levels between the dam and just below the Brewster 

Building, affecting 15 private and 2 public properties within the regulatory floodplain.8 Due to the flood risk the 

 
5 Watershed School. Facing the Future: A Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment for Camden, Maine. 2019.  
6 US Geological Survey. Rainfall Calculator. https://water.usgs.gov/edu/activity-howmuchrain.html. 
7 The Camden Herald. The Damage Done. 1922. 
8 Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky. Megunticook River Feasibility Report. 2021. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   13 

dam causes for the buildings above it, the East and West dams must be managed carefully to regulate the 

amount of water flowing downriver. It is also important to note that these floodplain assessments are based 

on current conditions and do not account for future rainfall projections.  

The dam restoration option that maintains current spillway levels would not help the town to prepare for 

future risk  of increasingly frequent, intense, and unpredictable precipitation. Forty feet upstream of the Main 

Street Bridge both the partial and the full dam removal scenarios, are expected to result in a 2.1-foot decrease 

in water levels, helping to reduce flood risk. Ten feet upstream of the Montgomery Dam, partial dam removal 

would result in moderate flood attenuation by lowering water levels approximately 3.2 feet. Full dam removal 

would lower water levels by 8.4 feet and remove the mill pond, substantially lowering the risk of flooding due 

to the river’s increased capacity to absorb and disperse floodwaters.9  

  

Figure 3. Model results for the 100‐year flood event. Source: 2019 Montgomery Dam Feasibility Study. 

Full dam removal would also unlock funding for the removal of the three private dams above it which would 

increase the river’s capacity to absorb and disperse floodwaters, reducing upstream and downstream flood 

risks. Removing dams eliminates the risk of sudden downstream flooding in the event of structural failure and 

allows sediment and debris to move more freely, preventing blockages that can exacerbate flood conditions 

and lead to costly infrastructure damage. Additionally, the removal of the Montgomery Dam will result in more 

flexibility in managing the East and West dams during significant rain events. 

Sea-Level Rise 

The Maine Climate Council recommends committing to manage 1.5 feet of sea level rise by 2050 and 4 feet by 

2100. Sea level rise and storm surge is already impacting Camden’s coastal infrastructure, including causing 

 
9 Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky. Feasibility/Alternatives Analysis Report: Montgomery Dam, Megunticook River. 2019.  



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   14 

significant damage to Harbor Park. The Harbor Park seawall is in need of updates to ensure its long-term 

stability. Removing the Montgomery Dam could also open up funding opportunities for seawall restoration, as 

many grant programs prioritize projects that enhance climate resilience. These projects could be implemented 

simultaneously using the same grant funding and project managers, maximizing efficiency and ensuring the 

best outcome for both the town and the overall project. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The Montgomery Dam requires ongoing maintenance and periodic repairs, placing a financial burden on 

taxpayers and Town staff. Maintenance involves daily inspections, continual water level monitoring, and gate 

adjustments which require the work of two people. Operators manually adjust the gate before, during, and 

after storms to prevent flooding of upstream buildings. The gate is also opened to remove debris, perform 

maintenance on the dam, or drain the impoundment when repairs are required for adjacent buildings. 

In the last decade, the town has spent $31,163 on repairs to the Montgomery Dam, as well as $52,940 on 

repairs to the seawall in Harbor Park. In 2022, repairs to the sluiceway gate cost $5,000 and additional repairs 

to the sluiceway were completed in 2023. Between 2023 and 2024, $90,000 worth of repairs were completed 

via private donation. These included a new sluiceway gate and masonry and repointing work. While these 

repairs were notable, significant additional repairs are needed to address ongoing structural issues and 

maintenance needs. 

In August 2024, Inter-Fluve conducted a cost analysis for the three scenarios for the Montgomery Dam based 

on a review of past projects and applicable cost data. The cost analysis includes the following parameters for 

each scenario: 

• Construction Costs: Initial construction costs as well as project delivery costs (project management, 

design, permitting, and construction period engineering). 

• Lifespan Costs: Estimated operation, maintenance, and repair costs for the fifty-year planning horizon. 

These estimates include an assumed 3.5% rate of inflation over the 50‐year period. 

• Seawall Reconstruction: The seawall would largely remain at its current elevation, with minor repairs 

such as chinking stone and capstone replacement, while deteriorated sections will be rebuilt using cut 

granite blocks. Repairs will be in-kind, though some may be made to enhance long-term stability. 

• Seawall Reconstruction/Adaptation and Harbor Park Resiliency: The seawall would be rehabilitated 

as described above and the seawall portion in Harbor Park area (as well as the land behind it) could be 

elevated by up to 4 feet to account for sea level rise. While it’s not included in current estimates, 

project partners are also considering grading changes to block coastal flooding pathways and 

vegetation changes to dissipate wave energy. 

The construction and lifespan cost estimates do not include potential associated park facility enhancements 

(paths, bridges, etc.), building retrofits, or salaries of those conducting dam maintenance. A 30% contingency is 

included in cost estimates to account for the uncertainties in the designs and current trade policies. Further 

refinements are expected as in subsequent design phases. The seawall reconstruction and harbor park 

resiliency options are included in this analysis because grant funding is available to pay for both dam removal 

(partial or full) and seawall adaptation and resilience in Harbor Park. It would be more cost efficient for the 

town to combine these initiatives.  

 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   15 

Scenario A: Dam Restoration 

For the dam restoration option, construction and lifespan costs range from $3.5 million (without seawall 

reconstruction and resiliency) to $6.5 million (with seawall reconstruction and resiliency). With added fish 

passage, it would cost an estimated $10.8 million. Construction for dam restoration, intended to bring the dam 

into compliance with regulatory dam safety requirements and modern design practices, would include:  

• The overflow concrete weir to the south of the dam gate will be demolished and rebuilt in-kind, 

restoring the cascade to a uniform flow 

• The headgate will be removed but surrounding masonry fascia in the area will be retained, reinstalled 

and restored 

• The sluiceway intake and concrete to the north of the headgate will be rebuilt, and gate will be 

reset with new operator 

• A locally-operated motorized gate actuator will be installed 

• A concrete overlay will reinforce the dam's north interior wall to seal joints, repair deterioration, and 

reduce leakage, while the east and north masonry walls will be repointed 

• Masonry and fascia stone on other areas of the dam will be cleaned and repointed 

Pros and Cons 

• Repairs the dam and restores the cascade to a uniform flow 

• Town of Camden would pay for construction and lifespan costs 

• Existing maintenance, operation, repair expenses continue  

• Does not address flood resilience but can include shoreline/seawall improvements 

• Fish passage is limited to American eel only 

• Maintains a fragmented river system and the least habitat connectivity 

Scenario B: Partial Dam Removal with Fish Passage 

For the partial dam removal with added fish passage option, estimated construction and lifespan costs range 

from $6.7 million (without seawall reconstruction and resiliency) to $9.9 million (with seawall reconstruction 

and resiliency). Construction for the partial dam removal scenario would include: 

• The same updates as the dam restoration option; however, 

• The spillway would be lowered by 4.5 feet to enable fish passage  

• A 10 x 230 foot “pool and weir” fishway would be added with 23 weirs and pools 

Pros and Cons 

• Potential to receive federal grants for construction costs  

• Improves flood resiliency, but not substantially 

• Marginal fish passage and connectivity improvements 

• Maintenance, operation, and repair expenses would continue 

• High maintenance costs associated with fish passage  

Scenario C: Full Dam Removal 

For the full dam removal option, estimated construction costs range from $1.7 million (without seawall 

reconstruction and resiliency) to $2.8 million (with seawall reconstruction and resiliency). With an additional 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   16 

overlook structure and incremental slope restoration (as depicted in Scenario C) the costs would increase to 

approximately $3.6 million. The estimated lifespan costs are $1.1 million for all full dam removal options and 

include seawall reconstruction and resiliency efforts. Construction for the full dam removal scenario would 

include: 

• Existing dam infrastructure would be removed  

• Existing bedrock remains although minimal changes may be required 

• Natural stream alignment and resulting modifications to Harbor Park grading, shoreline, pathways, and 
landscaping 

• Modifications to structures located directly in or adjacent to the impoundment 

• (Possibly) an added overlook structure and incremental slope restoration 

Pros and Cons 

• Construction costs are likely to be funded by federal grants 

• Dam operation costs are eliminated and maintenance costs are significantly reduced 

• Enhances flexibility in managing the East and West dams during significant rain events 

• Improves flood resiliency and reduces risk of debris damage 

• Reduces interaction between the river and structures  

• Enables fish passage and habitat connectivity and  

• Improves ecosystem health, biodiversity, and resilience 

• Opens up funding for removal of or upgrades to upriver dams  

• Creates opportunity for improving resiliency and adaptation in Harbor Park  

 

         2024 Inter-Fluve Cost Analysis for Montgomery Dam Scenarios ($ millions) 

  

*This scenario includes include the cost of an overlook structure and incremental slope  

restoration costs (as depicted in Scenario C). 

 

 

Scenario
Seawall 

Reconstruction

Seawall  

Resilience

Fish Passage
(Pool &Weir) 

Construction 

Costs

Lifespan Costs
(50 Years)

Totals

NO NO NO $1.6 $1.8 $3.5

YES NO NO $2.6 $3.4 $5.9

YES NO YES $6.3 $3.9 $10.2

YES YES NO $3.3 $3.2 $6.5

YES YES YES $7.0 $3.8 $10.8

NO NO YES $4.6 $2.1 $6.7

YES NO YES $5.6 $3.8 $9.4

YES YES YES $6.3 $3.6 $9.9

NO NO  - $1.7  -  - 

YES NO  - $2.6 $1.1 $3.6

YES YES  - $2.8 $1.1 $3.9

YES   YES*  - $3.6 $1.1 $4.6

Dam 

Restoration

Partial Dam 

Removal

Full Dam 

Removal



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   17 

Outside Funding  

The availability of federal, state, and private grants for fish passage improvements, climate change resiliency, 

and habitat restoration provide ample opportunity for mitigating costs for this project. During the August 23, 

2023 MRCAC community conversation at Camp Bishopswood in Hope, Matt Bernier and Jamie Carter from the 

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) assured us that the Megunticook River is an 

excellent candidate for funding. While NOAA’s grant program does not currently require match funding and 

could fund the entire project, Camden may be required to contribute some funds. (See the Appendix for a list 

of potential grant opportunities for dam removal and fish passage options). 

This grant money could be utilized to finance: 1) the removal of the Montgomery Dam and the privately-

owned dams (Knox Mill and Knowlton Street dams and Powder Mill ruins), 2) fish passage and much-needed 

updates to the three upper dams (Seabright, East, and West dams), 3) general river restoration, and 4) 

improve the resiliency of Harbor Park’s seawall.  

To be eligible for river restoration grants, however, the town must facilitate fish passage at the Montgomery 

Dam either by removing the dam or adding a fishway.  

Cost Analysis Summary 

Regarding initial construction costs, the approximate relative costs of full dam restoration, partial dam removal 

(without fish passage), and dam removal are essentially equal, ranging between $1.6 and 1.7 million. When 

fish passage is added to the dam restoration or partial dam removal scenarios, the costs of these scenarios are 

nearly triple that of the dam removal scenario, ranging between $4.6 and 5.3 million.  

Including the seawall reconstruction and resiliency efforts, the approximate lifespan costs of full dam 

restoration ($3.2 million) and partial dam removal with fish passage ($3.6 million) are more than triple the 

estimated lifespan costs of the dam removal scenario ($1.1 million). Though projects that facilitate fish passage 

may be paid for with grants (in part or in full), they have the highest lifespan costs.  

Over the next 50 years, restoring the dam would cost the Town of Camden an estimated $3.5 million (including 

construction and lifespan costs), while removing the dam would cost an estimated $1.7 million in construction 

(paid for in part or in full by grants) with minimal lifespan costs for maintenance and landscaping. With added 

seawall reconstruction and resiliency efforts, dam restoration would cost approximately $6.5 million, while 

dam removal would cost between $3.9 and $4.6 million, with a portion funded by grants.  

Given the significantly lower costs, minimized maintenance, and long-term savings after the initial investment, 

full dam removal presents the most financially responsible choice. This option would also unlock grant funding 

that could pay, possibly in full, for dam removal not only for the Montgomery Dam but also for the three 

private dams as well as fish passage at the three upper dams.  

LANDSCAPE AESTHETICS  

The flow of the water over the bedrock downstream of the dam is a favorite view of both locals and tourists. 

During our public outreach process, we frequently received feedback from citizens that desired to preserve the 

scenic properties of what is colloquially known as the “Camden Falls” or “the Falls.” We also received feedback 

from others who were excited by the prospect of seeing the river fall naturally over the rocks into the ocean. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   18 

The one scenario that attracted little support  was the scenario with a lowered waterfall and spillway, a smaller 

pond, and a possible fish ladder. 

Dam Restoration: The restoration of the spillway and sluiceway would prevent water from leaking out of the 

sluiceway and create a more robust and uniform waterfall. There would still be periods of low water during 

drought or drawdowns for flood management and repairs.  

Partial Dam Removal with Fish Passage: The partial removal would reduce the vertical waterfall by 4.5 feet 

and have a number of other impacts including a reduction of the pool by 40 - 50%, elimination or reduction of 

the southern flow, and more exposure of the support structure of the abutting buildings. In addition, although 

there would be less water in the pool, there would be no change in the quality of the water in the pool.  

Full Dam Removal: Dam removal and channel realignment would create a free-flowing river with a dynamic, 

natural landscape in place of the current impoundment and waterfall. The restored river would reduce 

stagnant water, improve water quality, and create opportunities for natural vegetation to establish itself along 

the banks. Dam removal also provides the opportunity to reconnect the community with the natural riverine 

environment. For example, with most or all of the water flowing on the east side, there is the possibility of 

accessing the island from the public landing, increasing areas for the public to recreate near the river. For 

Harbor Park, the removal is anticipated to open new opportunities for landscape enhancement, resiliency and 

adaption, and improved connectivity with the ocean, making it an even more inviting community space. Any 

changes or impacts to Harbor Park would require approval by the Camden Public Library Board of Trustees and 

may also necessitate authorization from other groups (see the Harbor Park section below for more details). 

The Montgomery Dam impoundment flows underneath several businesses along Camden’s Main Street 

including, House of Logan, the Camden Deli, The Smiling Cow, Buttermilk, Once-a-Tree, and Meliza’s Nail Salon 

and Spa. Many additional buildings have a view of the impoundment (also known as the Mill Pond) and/or the 

Megunticook River in the vicinity of the Montgomery Dam. Dam removal would restore natural river flow, 

reducing flood risks to adjacent properties during extreme weather events. Aesthetic changes would include 

the transformation of the river from a ponded impoundment to a free-flowing river, a larger island with more 

vegetation and a possible site for sitting and viewing the river. 

Dam removal will not change the total volume of water flowing; however, the flow rate will become more 

natural and variable, following seasonal and weather-related patterns. The reduced slope (from vertical to 

4%)10 would result in a slower flow, however, there will still be gushing waterfall effect with water flowing 

after heavy rains. 

Short-Term Impacts 

While river-abutting properties may face changes in water levels, potential bank erosion, and aesthetic shifts 

as the landscape adjusts to the restored river flow, these effects will be short-lived and outweighed by the 

long-term ecological and flood resilience benefits. As other towns that have removed dams have noticed, 

nature quickly fills in the river bank areas affected by reduced water levels.  

 

 

 
10 Inter-Fluve and Gartley & Dorsky. Megunticook River Feasibility Report. 2021. Page 45. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   19 

HISTORY AND CULTURE 

The damming of the Megunticook River played a significant role in fostering local industry and supporting the 

growth of our community. It is also important to acknowledge and celebrate the pre-industrial and indigenous 

history of the region and the natural landscapes and ecosystems that existed prior to the dams.  

Prior to settlement in the late 1700s, the Megunticook River played a critical role in the subsistence economy 

of the indigenous population of Midcoast Maine, the original inhabitants of the region. According to Dr. Arthur 

Spiess, Senior Archaeologist at the Maine Historical Preservation Commission, “there are two pre-European 

Native American sites yielding stone tool fragments on the shores of Megunticook Lake.” Until the late 18th 

century, there were a series of smaller ponds throughout the watershed. The dams flooded what became 

Megunticook Lake and Norton Pond, erasing most traces of Native American settlement.  

The first dam on the Megunticook River, near the current location of the Montgomery Dam, was built by 

William Minot in 1771. Its original purpose was generating power to operate a grist mill. The site has had 

several uses over the years. Most notably, it was converted to the Alden Anchor Factory, also known as the 

Camden Anchor Works, in the latter half of the 19th century. At one time, this was the largest anchor 

manufacturing plant in the United States, employing more than 200 workers and producing some of the 

largest anchors in the world. 

The site was converted to a sardine factory in the 1920s, before the dam was rebuilt in the 1930s after 

suffering damage from fires. The last industrial use of the dam was small-scale hydropower generation in the 

1980s. In 1992, the dam was gifted to the Town of Camden by the Montgomery Family. Geologic and 

cartographic evidence suggest that the Megunticook River channel alignment was historically shifted to 

optimize power production at the Montgomery Dam site and to construct Harbor Park. Today, the 

Montgomery Dam does not currently serve as a source of power generation and water supply or provide flood 

control.  

Interpretive Signage  

The committee recognizes the importance of preserving the historical and cultural significance of the 

Montgomery Dam and other dams along the river. To celebrate these dams, the town could install interpretive 

signage and displays to document the dam’s history and its role in Camden’s development. This could include 

archival photos, narratives about the site’s industrial and cultural heritage, and details about the ecological 

restoration process. Additionally, elements of the dam’s structure could be preserved or repurposed as 

commemorative features within the park or along walking paths to maintain a visible connection to its 

historical identity. Signs could also acknowledge the pre-industrial and ecological history and of the watershed.  

HARBOR PARK  

Harbor Park, originally home to shipyards, wharves, and warehouses, was transformed in the 1930s by the 

sons of landscape architect Frederick Law Olmsted, the renowned designer of New York City's Central Park. As 

a pioneer in sustainable design and conservation, Olmsted championed designing parks that harmonize with 

the surrounding ecology and foster human connection to nature.  

While the abutting parcel containing the Montgomery Dam (owned by J. Hugh Montgomery) was not part of 

Harbor Park, the Olmsted brothers outlined dam improvements paid for by Mary Louise Curtis Bok. According 

to the Camden Public Library Board of Trustees, “Olmsted’s interests in the dam were limited to reinforcement 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   20 

and strengthening necessary for the creation of Harbor Park. Grading of Harbor Park and retention/planting of 

trees were done specifically to block the view of the dam from Harbor Park and keep the dam out of the 

landscape frame Olmsted Brothers sought to have their design create.” 

The Olmsted brothers provided residents and visitors with access to the waterfront while preserving the area's 

natural beauty by creating walking paths, picnic areas, and scenic overlooks, all set against the backdrop of 

Camden Harbor and the Camden Public Library. Harbor Park has remained a beloved destination, and it serves 

as a gathering place for community events, concerts, and festivals, while also offering opportunities for 

recreation and relaxation along the picturesque waterfront. 

Since Harbor Park is listed on the National Register of Historic Places (as part of the High Street Historic 

District), any Park modifications made using state or federal funding – including, but not limited to, grants; tax 

credits; Federal Emergency Management Agency, Recovery Act, or resiliency funds – must be reviewed by the 

Maine Historic Preservation Commission (MHPC) and/or the National Park Service. Any proposed changes 

must consider the effect on the National Register, integrity of Harbor Park, and the ability of the character-

defining features to convey the historic significance of the park. The challenge here is two-fold: (1) preserve 

the features that convey significance and ensure the park’s continued contribution to the National Register, 

while (2) accommodating increased flooding and the impact of severe storms.11  

 

If there are proposed changes to character-defining features of Harbor Park, these will need to be reviewed by 

the Maine Historic Preservation Commission as well as the Town of Camden Historic Resources Committee. 

Depending on the scope of the project it may also require Maine DEP review and local site plan review (staff 

only). Any proposed changes will likely result in a Memorandum of Agreement with MHPC. 

COMMUNITY INPUT 

MRCAC gathered extensive community input through a range of channels to develop a well-rounded 

understanding of public concerns and priorities. These channels included community Q&A sessions, meetings 

with advocacy groups and stakeholders, MRCAC meetings, email, tabling at events, and a public survey.  

Over the course of two years, we heard a variety of concerns, including historical preservation, aesthetics, 

ecological health, fish passage, flood resilience, and taxpayer impact. The survey, conducted in collaboration 

with the University of New Hampshire, highlighted strong public interest in restoring the Megunticook River, 

with a focus on ecosystem health, flood mitigation, and fish migration. 

Throughout the process, we received contrasting perspectives regarding the Montgomery Dam. While some 

residents and abutting business owners expressed concerns that removing the dam and altering the falls could 

negatively impact the area’s aesthetics, others felt that a more natural, free-flowing river would be an 

aesthetic improvement. Similarly, while some residents worried that dam removal and the resulting aesthetic 

could harm the downtown economy, others believed that enabling fish migration and revitalizing the river 

would attract tourism and strengthen local businesses. Community feedback on the three Montgomery Dam 

scenarios strongly opposed the compromise option—partial dam removal with added fish passage—

reinforcing our view that it was not a viable solution.  

 
11 Barba, Nancy L.H., RA, LEED AP, Licensed Architect Maine, NH, NCARB, Principal and Elizabeth H. Reynolds, PE, Director 
of Preservation. Harbor Park - National Register of Historic Places Significance and Character-Defining Features. Received 
by Kristy Kilfoyle, Executive Director, Camden Public Library, 25 January, 2025. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   21 

While we carefully considered community input, the community’s contrasting views required us to rely heavily 

on our research and expert guidance to determine the best option for the long-term wellbeing and resilience 

of the Megunticook River and the community. 

 

KEY FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION  

We, the Megunticook River Citizens Advisory Committee, in an 8-1 decision, are recommending full removal 

of the Montgomery Dam, creating a free-flowing river that reduces damage to the shoreline and complies 

with Camden Public Library’s Statement on Harbor Park from April of 2024. 

This decision is rooted in a comprehensive evaluation of available alternatives, with a focus on the broader 

benefits for Camden’s ecosystem, economy, community, and infrastructure. We carefully considered the full 

range of technical reports and research expert-led presentations, as well as community input. 

The Montgomery Dam, originally constructed to support industrial operations, no longer serves its original 

function and now poses significant ecological and financial burdens. The dam acts as a barrier to migratory fish 

species such as alewives, brook trout, and Atlantic salmon, disrupting vital spawning cycles and reducing river 

health and biodiversity. The dam also degrades water quality by trapping sediment, causing mud buildup, and 

warming the river water, further harming aquatic life.  

Removal of the Montgomery Dam would restore natural water flow, improve habitat connectivity, and allow 

sea-run fish to return to the Megunticook Watershed, revitalizing a critical part of Maine’s marine ecosystem 

that supports local culture and economy. Restoring fish populations has the potential to attract tourists 

interested in viewing Spring fish migrations and recreational fishers, contributing to tourism revenue and 

creating economic opportunities for local businesses.  

From a resilience perspective, the dam’s presence increases flood risks for downtown Camden by obstructing 

natural water drainage during heavy rain events. As climate change leads to more intense storms and rising 

sea levels, maintaining the dam would exacerbate these risks to surrounding infrastructure. Removing the dam 

would improve the town’s flood resilience by restoring natural flow pathways and reducing strain on 

emergency management efforts during storm surges. 

Dam removal also represents the most cost-effective option in the long term. Unlike dam restoration or partial 

removal, full removal minimizes ongoing maintenance costs and eliminates the need for expensive structural 

inspections and repairs. It also reduces the cost of recovery from so-called nuisance floods as well as 

catastrophic ones by providing new areas for flooding water limiting or preventing damage to developed land 

or properties.  

In addition, by providing fish passage, dam removal unlocks external funding opportunities that can 

significantly offset initial costs, making this a sustainable long-term investment for the town. Removing the 

Montgomery Dam could also unlock funding for removing the three private dams above it and adding fish 

passageways at the three upper dams. Removing the four lower dams would  allow two miles of the river to 

flow freely, reconnecting divided ecosystems; enable sea-run fish to complete their migrations up river; and 

improve the health of the watershed and ocean ecosystems, making them more resilient to the effects of 

climate change. 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   22 

Dam removal would also open up more recreation opportunities such as canoeing, kayaking, and fishing and 

could spur increased foot traffic to the area, benefiting local shops, restaurants, and accommodations. A 

riverwalk along the revitalized waterway could enhance Camden’s appeal to visitors, supporting the tourism 

industry and boosting the local economy. 

While we acknowledge concerns about the historical and aesthetic significance of the Montgomery Dam, we 

believe that the ecological, economic, and community benefits of a restored, resilient river system outweigh 

these considerations. Removal provides an opportunity to honor the site’s history in innovative ways, such as 

interpretive signage or public art installations, while fostering a healthier and more sustainable environment 

for future generations. 

As members of MRCAC, we appreciate the opportunity to serve on this committee and wish to acknowledge 

the excellent, professional support of our consultants, facilitators, Town of Camden staff, and citizens of 

Camden. We remain committed to our work through the June vote and beyond, as needed.  

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

Ray Andresen 

Courtney Cease 

Deb Chapman 

Elphie Owen 

Ellen Reynolds 

Tyler Smith  

Seth Taylor 

Rick Thackeray 

Susan Todd 

 

 

 

 

 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   23 

APPENDIX: RESOURCES AND REFERENCES  

DAM COMPONENTS AND EXISTING CONDITIONS 

 

 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   24 

SCENARIO RENDITIONS 

These renditions, created by Viewshed with support from Inter-Fluve in 2024, do not reflect final designs.  

 

 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   25 

 

 

 

 



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   26 

 

 

 

  



 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   27 

FLOOD MAP 

This map is from an interactive tool on the MRCAC Website showing possible flooding along the Megunticook 

River. The special hazard flood area, or the 100-year floodplain with 1% annual chance of flooding extends 

along the Megunticook River as it flows to Camden Harbor from Megunticook Lake. In several areas the 500-

year floodplain or 0.2% annual chance of flooding extends beyond the 100-year floodplain. For more 

information, visit Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Maps Service Center.  

 

 

 

 

 

https://megunticook-river-watershed-project-fbe2019.hub.arcgis.com/pages/flooding
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=camden%2C%20maine#searchresultsanchor


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   28 

KEY DOCUMENTS 

Title Author(s) Brief Description 

2019 Feasibility/Alternatives 

Analysis Report Montgomery 

Dam, Megunticook River Camden, 

ME 

Inter-Fluve and 

Gartley & Dorsky 

Presents a series of fish passage improvement options for the 

Montgomery Dam. Also includes details on site history, current 

site conditions, flow and flood patterns, potential constraints, 

and cost estimates. 

2021 Megunticook River 

Feasibility Report 

Inter-Fluve and 

Gartley & Dorsky 

Presents a series of fish passage improvement options for each 

of the passage barriers along the Megunticook River. Also 

includes details on current site conditions, flow and flood 

patterns, potential constraints, and cost estimates. 

Information specific to the Montgomery Dam can be found 

primarily on pages 20-23, 41-45, 73, 89, 95-99, and 139. 

2022 Montgomery Dam Removal 

& Fish Passage Design 
Inter-Fluve 

A technical report outlining conceptual designs and landscape 

renderings for the Montgomery Dam and the buildings that 

hover over the dam impoundment. 

2024 Montgomery Dam Cost 

Analysis Memorandum 
Inter-Fluve 

This memorandum describes the estimated opinions of 

probable cost associated with three different alternatives 

developed for the Montgomery Dam. 

Megunticook River Watershed 

Gap Analysis 
FB Environmental 

A report summarizing the available existing information 

related to the Megunticook River and Watershed and 

identified gaps in information. Also includes prioritization of 

these gaps by MRCAC. 

Camden Mill Walk Brochure 

Camden Historic 

Resources 

Committee 

Offers a brief history of Camden, with a focus on the industrial 

period and its associated mills located along the Megunticook 

River. 

Megunticook River Citizens 

Advisory Committee 2023 

Community Survey 

The Survey Center, 

University of New 

Hampshire (UNH) 

Results report from a community survey developed by MRCAC 

in conjunction with UNH and FB Environmental from August-

October 2023. The survey sought feedback from the 

community regarding their awareness of MRCAC and the river 

restoration project, topics of interest, use of the watershed, 

and engagement interest and methods. 

Camden Public Library’s 

Statement on Harbor Park  

Camden Public 

Library Board of 

Trustees  

A statement regarding priorities and design guidelines for any 

project that encompasses Harbor Park. 

 

https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/3d5cccfc5a294fb8accc881a570b389e/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/3d5cccfc5a294fb8accc881a570b389e/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/3d5cccfc5a294fb8accc881a570b389e/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/3d5cccfc5a294fb8accc881a570b389e/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/11490a6f1bf0434ba69aeabac8756e45/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/11490a6f1bf0434ba69aeabac8756e45/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/9ee5c8fa5b574ba1a1543854537496d7/about
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/9ee5c8fa5b574ba1a1543854537496d7/about
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/9d0817562d6f450abd03d57e2b187ea4/about
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/9d0817562d6f450abd03d57e2b187ea4/about
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/cb5f9051b8d04217ace76538621d5699/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/cb5f9051b8d04217ace76538621d5699/explore
https://cms8.revize.com/revize/camdenme/Boards%20and%20Committees/Historic%20Resources%20Committee/Camden%20Mill%20Walk%20Brochure.pdf
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/519fcbd5d8634d988da62393ffaab89d/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/519fcbd5d8634d988da62393ffaab89d/explore
https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/documents/519fcbd5d8634d988da62393ffaab89d/explore
https://www.librarycamden.org/wp-content/uploads/CPL-Statement-on-Harbor-Park-April-2024.pdf
https://www.librarycamden.org/wp-content/uploads/CPL-Statement-on-Harbor-Park-April-2024.pdf


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   29 

MRCAC MEETINGS 

Recordings of each meeting are hyperlinked in the date of the meeting. 

Year Meeting Date Year Meeting Date Year Meeting Date Year Meeting Date 

2022 20-Sep-22 

2023 10-Jan-23 

2024 30-Jan-24 

2025 8-Jan-25 

18-Oct-22 7-Feb-23 12-Mar-24 15-Jan-25 

1-Nov-22 7-Mar-23 10-Apr-24 22-Jan-25 

6-Dec-22 4-Apr-23 8-May-24 6-Feb-25 

  6-Jun-23 12-Jun-24  12-Feb-25 

  11-Jul-23 10-Jul-24   

  8-Aug-23 11-Jul-24   

  12-Sep-23 13-Aug-24   

  10-Oct-23 9-Oct-24   

  14-Nov-23 13-Nov-24   

  12-Dec-23 4-Dec-24   

    11-Dec-24   

    18-Dec-24   
 

  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZTSkVkcrTCQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AJ6YNEtzSBI
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mmLsSyFk3hk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dKo_aVrHOHY&list=PLsJ7BcKN9MXFhRuXHFBKluldK5AN-4eBw&index=6
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jJwm2AJbSLQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bU_9SSnZsbU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Sap_Bc10VtA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=60x3VGp3mOc
https://www.youtube.com/live/EnlXpDyMypc?si=I4uSC40rIkYmyacn
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=p2YkrSpB-ao&list=PLsJ7BcKN9MXFhRuXHFBKluldK5AN-4eBw&index=7
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sP9bA1UCBJ0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8zJfp0WAHAg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7xuG3WR6dGs
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MCJXl_knBoU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LcSxyYblxxk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Y3pnFwpY1nQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=78EBjF4Uksk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zq4FA0EQe1o
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3t8UvGQ3FXA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h9LKibLbOAk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=imQPh3L7xYU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=r88I8kCilWU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UQ6oCeHDLzw&ab_channel=TownofCamdenMaine
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=B2ta09MM-ok
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=H8MMyCz5JK4
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jGjbYH7w39U&list=PLsJ7BcKN9MXFhRuXHFBKluldK5AN-4eBw&index=36
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c5vGbOlsGsI&list=PLsJ7BcKN9MXFhRuXHFBKluldK5AN-4eBw&index=35


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   30 

MRCAC PRESENTATIONS AND EVENTS 

Event recordings, summaries, and Q&A can be found on MRCAC website: 

https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/pages/education-presenter-series  

Date Presenter(s) Title 

January 17, 2023 Laura Diemer and Luke Frankel, FB Environmental Megunticook River & Watershed Ecology 

February 21, 2023 Nate Gray, Maine Department of Marine Resources 
River Ecology and the Importance 

Anadromous Fish have on the Ecosystem 

March 21, 2023 Mike Burke, Inter-Fluve 
Overview of Megunticook River Technical 

Studies 

April 18, 2023 Ken Gross, Camden Historical Society History of the Megunticook River 

May 16, 2023 
Darren Ranco, University of Maine / Penobscot 

Nation 

Wabanaki Land Relations, Caretaking, and 

Responsibility- Thoughts on the 

Megunticook 

June 27, 2023 David St. Laurent, Town of Camden Public Works Camden Dam Operation Tour 

July 25, 2023 
Tim Trumbauer, Megunticook Watershed 

Association 
Megunticook Lake Boat Tour 

August 23, 2023 

Matt Bernier and Jamie Carter, National Oceanic 

and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) and Alison 

McKeller, Town of Camden Selectboard 

NOAA and NFWF Community Conversation 

October 30, 2023 Nathan Furey, University of New Hampshire Migratory Fish: A Primer 

February 7, 2024 

Don Clement, Exeter Conservation 

Commission/Exeter Squamscott Local Advisory 

Committee; Billy Helprin, Somes-Meynell Wildlife 

Sanctuary; Matt Foster, Town of Farmington; and 

Ciona Ulbrich, Maine Coast Heritage Trust 

River Restoration Roundtable: Lessons 

Learned from Other Communities 

October 22 and 

October 30, 2024 
MRCAC 

Gathered community input on the 

financial, environmental, and 

management challenges 

 

https://www.megunticookrivercac.com/pages/education-presenter-series


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   31 

POTENTIAL GRANT OPPORTUNITIES FOR FISH PASSAGE INSTALLATION OR DAM 

REMOVAL 

Grant Name 

Funding 

Organizati

on 

Funds 

Available 
Allowable Projects 

Applicable to 

Montgomery 

Dam? 

America the 

Beautiful 

Challenge 

NFWF, DOI, 

DOD, USFS, 

NRCS 

$116 in 

FY2023, $1-$5 

million per 

implementatio

n project 

Projects must meet 1 of 5 categories:  

- Conserving and restoring rivers, coasts, 

wetlands and watersheds  

- Conserving and restoring forests, grasslands 

and important ecosystems that serve as carbon 

sinks 

- Connecting and reconnecting wildlife corridors, 

large landscapes, watersheds, and seascapes  

- Improving ecosystem and community resilience 

to flooding, drought, and other climate-related 

threats 

- Expanding access to the outdoors, particularly 

in underserved communities 

 Yes 

Climate 

Resilience 

Regional 

Challenge 

NOAA 

$575 million in 

FY2024, 

program may 

not be offered 

in the future 

Collaborative projects that increase the resilience 

of coastal communities to extreme weather (e.g., 

hurricanes and storm surge) and other impacts of 

climate change, including sea level rise and 

drought. 

Yes  

Embrace a 

Stream 

Trout 

Unlimited 

Max award is 

$10,000 (1:1 

match 

required) 

Must apply through state TU Council. Funds on-

the-ground restoration, protection, or 

conservation efforts that benefit trout and 

salmon fisheries and their habitats, education or 

outreach projects that increase the awareness 

and support of cold-water conservation among a 

non-TU audience, feasibility studies, campaign 

planning, or other tools that will directly 

contribute to TU’s imminent ability to benefit 

cold-water resources, applied research, 

assessment, or monitoring that addresses the 

causes of fisheries or watershed problems and 

helps develop management solutions 

 Yes 

Five Star and 

Urban Waters 

Restoration 

Grant 

NFWF, 

Wildlife 

Habitat 

Council, 

EPA, USFS, 

$2 million in 

FY2024, up to 

$60,000 per 

project 

Ecological improvements may include one or 

more of the following: wetland, riparian, forest 

and coastal habitat restoration; wildlife 

conservation, community tree canopy 

enhancement, wildlife habitat, urban agriculture 

 Yes 

https://www.nfwf.org/programs/america-beautiful-challenge?activeTab=tab-1
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/america-beautiful-challenge?activeTab=tab-1
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/america-beautiful-challenge?activeTab=tab-1
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
https://coast.noaa.gov/funding/ira/resilience-challenge/
https://www.tu.org/get-involved/volunteer-tacklebox/fundraising-resources/grants-corporate-fundraising/embrace-a-stream/
https://www.tu.org/get-involved/volunteer-tacklebox/fundraising-resources/grants-corporate-fundraising/embrace-a-stream/
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/five-star-and-urban-waters-restoration-grant-program?activeTab=tab-1
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/five-star-and-urban-waters-restoration-grant-program?activeTab=tab-1
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/five-star-and-urban-waters-restoration-grant-program?activeTab=tab-1
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/five-star-and-urban-waters-restoration-grant-program?activeTab=tab-1


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   32 

USFWS, 

NRCS 

and community gardens, wildlife and water 

quality monitoring and green infrastructure best 

management practices for managing run-off.  

 

Projects should increase access to the benefits of 

nature, reduce the impact of environmental 

hazards and engage local communities, 

particularly underserved communities, in project 

planning, outreach and implementation. 

Flood Mitigation 

Assistance 
FEMA 

$800 million in 

FY2023 

Focus on reducing or eliminating the risk of 

repetitive flood damage to buildings and 

structures insured by the National Flood 

Insurance Program (NFIP). 

 Yes 

Maine Coastal 

Community 

Grants 

ME 

Departmen

t of 

Agriculture

, 

Conservati

on, and 

Forestry 

$165,000 in 

FY2024, up to 

$50,000 per 

project 

Projects that build community resilience to adapt 

to a changing climate. Projects can include green 

infrastructure; preparing communities for coastal 

storms and storm surge, shoreline erosion, sea 

level rise, and flooding; and planning for reducing 

water quality impacts from land use activities. 

 Yes 

National Coastal 

Resilience Fund 

NFWF and 

NOAA 

$144 million in 

2023 

Supports the implementation of nature-based 

solutions to enhance the resilience of coastal 

communities and ecosystems to these threats. 

We strategically invest in projects that construct 

or restore coastal habitats that increase the 

capacity of communities and habitats to 

withstand and recover from disruptions and 

adapt to changing environmental conditions. 

 Yes 

National Fish 

Passage Program 

US Fish and 

Wildlife 

Service 

Average 

$70,000 per 

project, match 

is flexible (aim 

for 50%, can be 

federal) 

Improves community infrastructure resilience, 

rebuilds fish populations, improves recreational 

and commercial fisheries, and restores the 

beauty of free-flowing waters. Provide financial 

and technical assistance to support projects that 

improve fish passage.  

 Yes 

Rehabilitation of 

High Hazard 

Potential Dams  

FEMA 

$185.12 million 

available in 

FY2024. 

Planning, design, rehabilitation, repair, and 

removal of non-federal dams designated as high 

hazard potential in the National Inventory of 

Dams (NID). Dam must have a FEMA-approved 

Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

No 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/flood-mitigation-assistance
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/flood-mitigation-assistance
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/municipalplanning/financial_assistance.shtml
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/municipalplanning/financial_assistance.shtml
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/municipalplanning/financial_assistance.shtml
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/national-coastal-resilience-fund
https://www.nfwf.org/programs/national-coastal-resilience-fund
https://www.fws.gov/service/fish-passage-technical-and-planning-assistance
https://www.fws.gov/service/fish-passage-technical-and-planning-assistance
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams/resources
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams/resources
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams/resources


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   33 

Restoring Fish 

Passage through 

Barrier Removal 

NOAA 

$175 million in 

2023. $1-$20 

million per 

project. 

This funding will support the locally led removal 

of dams and other in-stream barriers. Selected 

projects will sustain our nation’s fisheries and 

contribute to the recovery of threatened and 

endangered species. They may also provide 

community and economic benefits, such as jobs 

and climate resilience. 

Yes 

Section 206 

Aquatic 

Ecosystem 

Restoration 

US Army 

Corps of 

Engineers 

Up to $10 

million per 

project, 35% 

non-federal 

match required 

for design and 

construction 

Projects must improve the quality of the 

environment, be in the public interest, 

demonstrate cost effectiveness and be no more 

than $10.0 million in total cost.  

Yes 

Transformational 

Habitat 

Restoration and 

Coastal 

Resilience 

NOAA 

$240 million in 

2023, $1-$25 

million per 

project 

Transformational habitat restoration projects 

that restore marine, estuarine, or coastal 

ecosystems, using approaches that enhance 

community and ecosystem resilience to climate 

hazards. Funding will prioritize habitat 

restoration actions that: demonstrate significant 

impacts; rebuild productive and sustainable 

fisheries; contribute to the recovery and 

conservation of threatened and endangered 

species; promote climate-resilient ecosystems, 

especially in tribal, indigenous, and/or 

underserved communities; and improve 

economic vitality, including local employment.  

Yes  

Watershed and 

Flood Prevention 

Operations 

Program 

NRCS 

$500 million 

available, 1:1 

cost share 

required 

Plan and implement authorized watershed 

projects for the purpose of: Flood Prevention, 

Watershed Protection, Public Recreation, Public 

Fish and Wildlife, Agricultural Water 

Management, Municipal and Industrial Water 

Supply, Water Quality Management 

Yes 

Funding resources were sourced in part from American Rivers Dam-Related Funding in the Infrastructure 

Investment and Jobs Act (https://www.americanrivers.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/American-Rivers-IIJA-

Dam-Related-Funds-2-pager.pdf), DamSafety.org Alternative Funding for Dam Rehabilitation and Removal 

(https://damsafety.org/sites/default/files/files/FundingAssistance.pdf), and the Congressional Research 

Service Federal Resources for Non-federal Dam Safety (https://sgp.fas.org/crs/misc/R47383.pdf).  

https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/restoring-fish-passage-through-barrier-removal-grants
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/restoring-fish-passage-through-barrier-removal-grants
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/restoring-fish-passage-through-barrier-removal-grants
https://www.sas.usace.army.mil/Missions/CAP/Section-206-Aquatic-Ecosystem-Restoration/
https://www.sas.usace.army.mil/Missions/CAP/Section-206-Aquatic-Ecosystem-Restoration/
https://www.sas.usace.army.mil/Missions/CAP/Section-206-Aquatic-Ecosystem-Restoration/
https://www.sas.usace.army.mil/Missions/CAP/Section-206-Aquatic-Ecosystem-Restoration/
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/transformational-habitat-restoration-and-coastal-resilience-grants
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/transformational-habitat-restoration-and-coastal-resilience-grants
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/transformational-habitat-restoration-and-coastal-resilience-grants
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/transformational-habitat-restoration-and-coastal-resilience-grants
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/grant/transformational-habitat-restoration-and-coastal-resilience-grants
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/watershed-and-flood-prevention-operations-wfpo-program
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/watershed-and-flood-prevention-operations-wfpo-program
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/watershed-and-flood-prevention-operations-wfpo-program
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/watershed-and-flood-prevention-operations-wfpo-program
https://www.americanrivers.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/American-Rivers-IIJA-Dam-Related-Funds-2-pager.pdf
https://www.americanrivers.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/American-Rivers-IIJA-Dam-Related-Funds-2-pager.pdf
https://damsafety.org/sites/default/files/files/FundingAssistance.pdf
https://sgp.fas.org/crs/misc/R47383.pdf


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   34 

POTENTIAL GRANT OPPORTUNITIES FOR DAM REPAIR 

Grant Name 
Funding 

Organization 

Funds 

Available 
Allowable Projects 

Applicable 

to 

Montgom

ery Dam? 

Building Resilient 

Infrastructure 

and 

Communities 

FEMA 

$1 billion in 

FY2023. 25% 

non-federal 

match 

required. 

Incentivize natural hazard risk reduction activities 

that mitigate risk to public infrastructure, 

incorporate nature-based solutions including those 

designed to reduce carbon emissions, enhance 

climate resilience and adaptation, and promote 

equity and prioritize disadvantaged communities. 

No 

Corps Water 

Infrastructure 

Financing 

Program (CWIFP) 

US Army Corps 

of Engineers 

$81 million for 

2023, up to 

$20 million per 

project 

Safety projects to maintain, upgrade, repair, or 

remove non-federal dams for flood damage 

reduction, hurricane and storm damage reduction, 

environmental restoration, coastal or inland harbor 

navigation improvement, or inland and intracoastal 

waterways navigation. *Note this is a loan NOT a 

grant* 

Yes 

Flood Mitigation 

Assistance 
FEMA 

$800 million in 

FY2023 

Focus on reducing or eliminating the risk of 

repetitive flood damage to buildings and structures 

insured by the National Flood Insurance Program. 

Yes 

Hazard 

Mitigation 

Assistance (404 

Program) 

FEMA 

25% non-

federal match 

required. 

Available when authorized through a major disaster 

declaration. To plan for and implement mitigation 

measures that reduce the risk of loss of life and 

property from future natural disasters during the 

reconstruction process following a disaster 

No 

Maine Historic 

Preservation 

Fund Grants 

Maine Historic 

Preservation 

Commission 
(federally 

funded) 

$5,000-$24,995 

(1:1 match 

required) 

Architectural or archaeological survey or 

development or pre-development projects. Eligible 

properties must be listed in the National Register of 

Historic Places. 

No 

Pre-Disaster 

Mitigation Grant 

Program 

FEMA 

$233 million 

for FY2023. 

25% non-

federal match 

required. 

Plan for and implement sustainable cost-effective 

measures designed to reduce the risk to individuals 

and property from future natural hazards, while 

also reducing reliance on federal funding from 

future natural disasters. 

Yes 

Rehabilitation of 

High Hazard 

Potential Dams  

FEMA 

$185.12 million 

available in 

FY2024. 

Planning, design, rehabilitation, repair, and removal 

of non-federal dams designated as high hazard 

potential in the National Inventory of Dams. Dam 

No 

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-resilient-infrastructure-communities
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-resilient-infrastructure-communities
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-resilient-infrastructure-communities
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-resilient-infrastructure-communities
https://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Infrastructure/revolutionize/CWIFP/
https://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Infrastructure/revolutionize/CWIFP/
https://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Infrastructure/revolutionize/CWIFP/
https://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/Civil-Works/Infrastructure/revolutionize/CWIFP/
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/flood-mitigation-assistance
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/flood-mitigation-assistance
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation
https://www.maine.gov/mhpc/programs/grants
https://www.maine.gov/mhpc/programs/grants
https://www.maine.gov/mhpc/programs/grants
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/pre-disaster
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/pre-disaster
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/pre-disaster
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams/resources
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams/resources
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/risk-management/dam-safety/rehabilitation-high-hazard-potential-dams/resources


 

MRCAC – MONTGOMERY DAM RECOMMENDATION   35 

must have a FEMA-approved Hazard Mitigation 

Plan. 

Watershed 

REHAB Program 
NRCS   

Rehabilitate aging dams that are reaching the end 

of their design lives; and/or build or augment 

existing water supplies based on current and future 

water supply demands. 

Likely not 

competitive 

 

about:blank
about:blank


 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Select Board 

From: Janice Esancy, Assistant Town Manager 

Date: February 11, 2025 

Re: Budget Committee Membership 

 

PURPOSE 
To appoint 4 members to the Budget Committee 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Budget Committee currently has four vacancies on its 11-member committee, with 
members serving three-year staggered terms beginning on the date of the Town Meeting. 
We have received four committee interest forms from Camden residents eager to serve. 
The vacancies have been continuously posted on the Town’s website and displayed on the 
TV in the front window of the Town Office lobby, ensuring that citizens are informed year-
round about available opportunities. 
 
Two of the current vacancies will expire in 2025. Those filling these positions will have the 
option to seek reappointment next year. It is our administrative policy to maintain the 
original expiration dates, even when filling unexpired terms, this helps preserve the 
staggered structure, preventing an excessive number of vacancies from occurring within the 
same appointment cycle. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Board appoint two members with terms expiring June 2027 and 
two members expiring June 2025 to make a full committee for the Budget Committee.   









TOWN OF CAMDEN 
 

The TownofCamden is seeking residents interested in serving on a Townboard or committee. Vacancies
arise throughout the year and a reserve list of candidates ismaintained to fill future vacancies. Please return

this form to: Janice Esancy, AssistantTownManager, 29 ElmStreet,Municipal Building,CamdenME04843. Application
forms canalsobe downloadedvia the Town’swebsite at: www.camdenmaine.gov

Name Date

Address

MailingAddress

HomePhone CellPhone

EmailAddress

Please indicate any special qualificationsor anyexperience that you thinkmaybehelpful inyour choice of board or
committee.

Tell uswhy you have an interest in serving, andwhatmight you contribute to aboard or committee.

Signature: Date:

Budget Committee CR Pathways Cmte Planning Board

Cemetery Association Harbor Committee Zoning Board

Conservation Commission Historic Resources Cmte _______ OTHER

*Boards and Committeesmeetmonthly or as needed as follows:
BudgetCommittee/BudgetNominating–EarlySpring
CemeteryAssociationQuarterly (3rdWeds) at 4 pm
ConservationCommission – 1stWeds at 12:30 pm
CRPathways – Quarterly - 3rd Thurs at 6:00 pm
Harbor Committee – 2nd Tues at 8:00 am
Historic Resources Committee – 3rd Mon at 4:00 pm
Planning Board – 1st & 3rd Thurs at 5 pm
Zoning Board of Appeals – 2nd & 4th Thurs at 5 pm

Geoffrey Scott 2/13/25

21 Ames Ter

3039684430 3039684430

gorder@scottsnet.com

Managed budgets as part of career, active in town issues, been chair of the Pathways Committee, served and serving on

several boards.

Always interested in helping any way I can. I think I have a fairly balanced perspective.

2/13/25

X


	Select Board Agenda 02.18.25
	2. Approval of Board Minutes 02.04.25
	3. Consent Agenda
	a. 16 Bay View 
	4. Dangerous Building Hearing
	a.  Letter to Janis Kay
	b. Notice of Hearing
	7. Action Items
	a. MRCAC Recommendation
	b. Budget Committee
	Committee Interest Forms

